
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Cabinet 

Date: Tuesday, 26th January, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom Meeting 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

5   Minutes  4 - 17 

 To consider the Minutes of the meetings held on 19th November 2020 

and 1st December 2020. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway, Rochdale  18 - 53 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Quality 

of Place / Director of Environment 

 

7   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

8   Rochdale Academy SEN school  54 - 58 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Getting a 

Good Start / Director of Children’s Services 

 

9   Rochdale Town Hall - Procurement and Appointment of Main 

Works Contractors for Phases 1 & 2  

59 - 64 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving 

Economy / Director of Economy 

 

10   Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 Update  65 - 74 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving 

Economy / Director of Economy 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Janet Emsley 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell 
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
Councillor Carol Wardle  
 
For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services  
Telephone: 01706 924711 
Email: alison.james@Rochdale.gov.uk  
 



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 19 November 2020 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Neil Emmott, 
Emsley, Blundell, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle 
 
OFFICERS:  Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Mark Widdup (Director of 
Neighbourhoods), Sally McIvor (Director of Commissioning (DASS)), John 
Searle (Director of Economy), Mark Robinson (Assistant Director Economy - 
Planning & Development), Paul Moore (Head of Planning), Julie Murphy 
(Chief Finance Officer), Jennifer Francis (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and 
Alison James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Dearnley 
 

60 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed. 
 

61 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

62 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

63 2040 TRANSPORT DELIVERY PLAN/DISTRICT LOCAL 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Economy which advised that 
alongside work to prepare a refreshed Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) 
and the next version of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF), 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) has been working with the GMCA, 
the ten Greater Manchester councils and the Greater Manchester Mayor to 
prepare new, and updated, transport strategy documents that cover our entire 
city-region.   
  
This work includes a refreshed version of our long-term, statutory local 
transport plan - the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 - and a final 
version of Our Five-Year Delivery Plan (2020-2025) which sets out the 
practical actions planned to deliver the Strategy over the next 5 years. In 
addition, ten new Local Implementation Plans have also been prepared (one 
for each Greater Manchester council) setting out transport priorities and 
smaller interventions to achieve these ambitions at a local level.   
 
In considering the submitted report, Cabinet were advised that the 
Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee had requested that a number of matters be looked at including 
roundabouts in Middleton and Metrolink access to the Borough and had 
recommended that these and any other minor amendments be delegated to 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



the Director of Economy in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Quality 
of Place. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The 2040 Transport Strategy and Delivery Plans, alongside the GMSF, will 
help articulate to residents and Government how we will deliver sustainable 
economic growth.  It will also identify transport improvements which will need 
to take place to support those strategic growth locations.  Together, these 
documents offer an integrated approach to transport and land use planning, 
by identifying the strategic transport interventions required to deliver the scale 
of growth set out in the GMSF.    
 
At a local level, it is also hoped that the LIP will enable us to better articulate 
the transport and minor interventions that need to be delivered or developed 
in the short term, to support the likes of our Growth Plan, Rail Corridor 
Strategy and Town Centre plans as well as Right-Mix and Carbon Reduction 
targets.  It will also be helpful when it comes to setting out a programme of 
priority local transport and minor works interventions for the next five years, 
and will help to provide a basis against which future local transport and minor 
works funding is allocated for local delivery, as well as support bids for other 
non GM funding.    
 
To not approve these documents could result in the loss of significant future 
external funding opportunities for the Borough.    
 
Resolved: 

1. That Council be recommended: 
a) to endorse the refreshed Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 

2040 and the final version of Our Five-Year Delivery Plan for 
approval by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority;  

b) to approve the publication of the supporting Local Implementation 
Plan as an appendix to Our Five-Year Delivery Plan, acknowledging 
that these are “live” documents and will be subject to regular review 
and update as appropriate;   

c) to delegate authority to the Director of Economy in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Quality of Place to enable minor 
amendments prior to submission to the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority. 

 
Reason for the decision: 
To provide details of the content and publication arrangements for the 
refreshed Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040, Our Five Year 
Delivery Plan (2020-2025) and Local Implementation Plan. The report 
considers these documents alongside other planned strategic activities. 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 4



64 GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Economy which advised that 
The Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) is a joint Development 
Plan Document.  Following consultation on the two previous drafts in 2016 
and 2019, Greater Manchester’s Plan for Homes, Jobs and the Environment 
(the GMSF) has now progressed to the GMSF: Publication Draft 2020 (GMSF 
2020).   
  
The GMSF 2020 publication version of the plan is the version that each of the 
Greater Manchester districts believe should be submitted to the Government 
for Examination.  
  
This report sets out background information that gives an overview of what the 
GMSF 2020 is and why it is being produced. It gives an overview of what the 
GMSF 2020 is planning for across Greater Manchester and highlights the key 
proposals for housing, employment and infrastructure in Rochdale and the 
justification for the approach taken. It also describes the key benefits that the 
GMSF 2020 will bring to Rochdale and examines the implications of Covid-19 
and the recently released Planning White Paper before setting out when and 
how consultation on the GMSF 2020 will take place.  
  
Member approval was sought to make the GMSF 2020 available for comment 
over an 8-week period and submit the GMSF 2020 for examination to the 
secretary of state as per the detailed recommendations below.   
 
In considering the submitted report, Cabinet were advised of an amended 
recommendation in relation to the commencement of the proposed 
consultation period, following a recent decision of Stockport Council. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
Preparing our own up to date local plan but this would make addressing 
strategic cross boundary issues more difficult and would exclude Rochdale 
from this GM plan for strategic growth.    
 
Resolved: 

1. That Council be recommended to: 
a) approve the GMSF: Publication Draft 2020, including strategic site 

allocations and green belt boundary amendments, and reference to the 
potential use of compulsory purchase powers to assist with site 
assembly, 2.2 and the supporting background documents, for 
publication pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 for a period of 
representations starting on a date to be agreed by the Chief Executive, 
in consultation with the Leader and Cabinet Member for A Thriving 
Economy; 

b) approve the GMSF: Publication Draft 2020 for submission to the 
Secretary of State for examination following the period for 
representations;  

Page 5



c) Delegate to the Director of Economy authority to approve the relevant 
Statement of Common Ground(s) required pursuant to the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019;  

d) Delegate authority to the Lead Chief Executive, Housing, 
Homelessness and Infrastructure, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Leader for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure to make minor or 
non-material amendments to the GMSF: Publication Draft 2020 and 
background documents prior to their publication. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The GMSF 2020 is a statutory plan and requires approvals from Cabinet and 
Full Council for the requisite stage.   
 

 
 

Page 6



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday 1st December 2020 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Brett (Chair); Councillors Daalat Ali, Neil Emmott, 
Emsley, Blundell, Heakin, Rowbotham and Wardle 
 
OFFICERS: Steve Rumbelow (Chief Executive), Neil Thornton (Director of 
Resources), Gail Hopper (Director of Children’s Services), Julie Murphy (Chief 
Finance Officer), David Wilcock (Monitoring Officer), Steve Blezard (Director 
of Operations - Adult Social Care), Mark Robinson (Assistant Director – 
Economy (Planning and Development), Samantha Smith (Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer), Rosemary Barker (Head of Workforce & Organisational 
Development), Fay Davies (Children’s Services), Nicola Rogers (Economy 
Directorate), Carolyn Goddard and Alison James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Dearnley 
 

65 APOLOGIES 
 Apologies were received from Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 
 

66 MINUTES 
Resolved 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 27th October 2020 be 
approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

67 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

68 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Leader indicated that he had accepted an additional item of business 
onto the Agenda – Statement of Licensing Policy at Agenda Item 12, as it 
needed to be considered at Council on 16th December to fulfil statutory 
requirements. 
 

69 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT PERIOD 6 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer which informed 
Members about the on the Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at 
the end of September 2020, and the additional Covid-19 funding received in 
October. 
 
Alternatives Considered: 
 
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.  

Page 7



 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and 
the Collection Fund as at the end of September 2020, as detailed in 
section 4 of the report be noted; 

2. That the utilisation of the 4th tranche of emergency Covid 19 funding of 
£6,199k detailed in section 4.1. of the report be approved; 

3. That the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed 
in section 4.2 of the report be noted;  

4. That the Budget Pressure requests for 2021/22 as detailed in section 
4.3 of the report be approved;  

5. That the forecast unachieved savings target as detailed  in section 4.4 
of the report be noted;  

6. That the net Capital budget changes of £1,066k detailed in section 
4.6.1 of the report be noted;  

7. That the Capital re-phasing of £5,579k detailed in section 4.6.2. of the 
report be noted;  

8. That the reversal of the £140k reduction in Townships capital budget in 
2020/21, and rephasing of that budget into 2021/22, as detailed in 
section 4.6.3. of the report be approved;  

9. That the budget returns of £1,001k detailed in 4.6.4 of the report be  
noted;  

10.  That the budget switch as detailed in 4.6.5 of the report be approved; 
11.  That the mid-year 2020/21 Treasury Management update report 

contained in section 4.8. of the report be noted. 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities.  
 
The report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end 
September 2020. 
 

70 CALCULATION OF 2021-22 TAXBASE 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which sought 
support for submission to Council for the statutory Council Tax Base 
calculation for 2021/22, calculated in accordance with The Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 as part of the 
2021/22 Estimates process, for the Local Council Tax Support Scheme to 
remain unchanged for 2021/22 and to approve the precept payment dates for 
2021/22.  
 
Alternatives considered: 
No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
calculate and approve a Council Tax base each financial year.  
 
 

Page 8



Resolved: 
 

1. That Council be informed that Cabinet recommends the following: 
a) That the Council Tax base expressed as “Band D equivalent 

properties”, be recommended as 54,637 for 2021/22 (55,745 
2020/21) as detailed at Appendix 1 of the report be approved; 

b) That the Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/22 remains 
unchanged.  

c) That the proposed precepts payment schedule be as detailed in 
paragraph 4.2.of the report be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
Rochdale Borough Council, as a Council Tax billing authority, is required each 
year to make statutory calculations specified in Section 33 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 require 
authorities to calculate the Council Tax base (number of taxable properties), 
expressed as "Band D equivalent properties". Approval of these calculations 
is required by 31st January in each financial year.   

  
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to be 
adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing authorities 
to notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments schedule. This 
notification must be given before 31st December in respect of the following 
financial year. The final payments schedule is then confirmed by 31st 
January.  

  
The calculation of the tax base has to be made by 31st January and notified to 
the major precepting and levying authorities. Under Section 84 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 the determination can be delegated to a committee or 
sub-committee in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972. This report recommends that Cabinet considers the report for 
submission to Council on 16 December 2020.  
 

71 COUNCIL TAX EMPTY PROPERTY CHARGES 
The Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer that was 
seeking approval to increase the council tax empty property premium from 
200% to 300% with effect from 1st April 2021 for properties that have been 
empty in excess of 10 years.  
 
In considering the submitted report, Members of Cabinet were informed that 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 24th November 2020, had 
requested that Cabinet give consideration to providing Council Tax 
exemptions, or some form of relief for domestic accommodations that are 
attached to commercial premises, such as pubs and shops, which had 
become empty because they have had to close because of the adverse 
effects of Covid-19. 
 
 

Page 9



Alternatives considered: 
The empty property premium could remain at 200%. However, Government 
has identified that additional measures are needed to continue the 
improvements already made and have amended the legislation.   
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That Council be informed that Cabinet recommends the following: 
a) That the proposal to increase the council tax empty property 

premium from 200% to 300% with effect from 1 April 2021 for 
properties that have been empty in excess of 10 years be approved; 

b) That the request of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee relating to  providing Council Tax exemptions, or some 
form of relief, for domestic accommodations that are attached to 
commercial premises, such as pubs and shops, which had become 
empty because they have had to close because of the adverse 
effects of Covid-19 be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
In April 2013, Government gave local authorities power to determine the level 
of empty property discounts in dwelling classes B, C and D (Section 12 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 2012). The power included an option to 
charge a premium of up to 50% where a property has been empty in excess 
of two years. The Council decided to introduce a 50% premium with effect 
from 1 April 2013 and increased this to 100% with effect from 1 April 2019.  
  
From 1 April 2020, Government increased the optional maximum empty 
property premium charge to 200% for properties that have been empty in 
excess of 5 years.  The Council decided to introduce this 200% premium with 
effect from 1 April 2020.   
  
From 1 April 2021, Government is increasing the optional maximum empty 
property premium charge to 300% for properties that have been empty in 
excess of 10 years.  
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 24th November 2020, 
had requested that Cabinet give consideration to providing Council Tax 
exemptions, or some form of relief for domestic accommodations that are 
attached to commercial premises, such as pubs and shops, which had 
become empty because they have had to close because of the adverse 
effects of Covid-19. 
 

72 2021/22 SETTING THE BUSINESS RATE BASE 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which sought 
consideration for the setting of the Business Rates baseline for 2021/22 in 
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and the Non-
Domestic Rating Regulations 2013; and approval of the precept payment 
dates for 2021/22.  
 

Page 10



Alternatives considered: 
No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
estimate and set a Business Rates Baseline each financial year. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That Council be recommended to approve: 
a)  the draft Business Rate baseline figure of £63.251m for 2021/22, 

subject to any changes which may result from:  

 the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
2021/22; 

 a change to the current pilot scheme for 100% retention of 
Business Rates; 

 the issue of the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government (MHCLG) guidance on completion of the 
2021/22 Business Rates baseline return (NNDR1), due in 
January 2021.; 

b) that the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Finance, be authorised to conclude and agree the final 
Business Rates baseline return (NNDR1) due on 31 January 2021, 
should the final information yet to be received from MHCLG change 
the baseline figure for 2021/22;  

c) that the precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 4.2 of the 
report be approved.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) 
require billing authorities to notify the Secretary of State and their major 
precepting authority of their calculation of non-domestic rating income for the 
following financial year and the estimated surplus/deficit on the Collection 
Fund by 31st January each year.  
  
The figures are produced subject to the MHCLG guidance being published 
and provided, following which the figure in this report may have to be revisited 
 

73 SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP 
Cabinet considered the report of the Monitoring Officer which advised that he 
findings of the Social Care and Local Government Ombudsman (SCLGO) 
reported had been reported to Cabinet earlier this year when he made a 
finding that a special guardian had suffered injustice as a result of the 
Council’s Special Guardianship Support Policy (the Policy). The SCLGO also 
recommended, and Cabinet agreed, that the Policy be reviewed and 
consulted on. That process is now complete and requires an adoption 
decision from Members.  
 
Alternatives considered: 
There are no alternatives recommended. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Special Guardianship Support Policy be approved and 
adopted. 

Page 11



 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Council is required to adopt a legally compliant Policy. 
   
 

74 SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2021/22 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which provided 
recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the pre 
Covid-19 budget gap for 2021/22. Following the Local Government Finance 
Settlement 2021/22, further savings proposals will be brought forward should 
any be required. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.  
  
Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the individual reports outline 
any alternatives considered. To do nothing was not considered to be an option 
as the Council is legally required to set a balanced budget.  
  
Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.  
  
Resolved: 

1. That the savings proposals rated as green and amber to address the 
budget gap be approved for public consultation starting 4th January 
2021.   

2. That the proposal to earmark £0.5m of one-off funds in contingency, 
which will be allocated to Adult Care Service in 2021/22 if additional 
demand pressures materialise be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2022/23 to 2023/24. 
The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 by 11th March 
2021.  
 

75 STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2021-2026 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
informed Members that the Council has to determine and publish a Statement 
of Licensing Policy every 5 years in order to meets its statutory obligations. 
The determination and publishing of such is required to be undertaken by 
January 2021.   
  
The purpose of the policy statement is to define how the responsibilities under 
the Licensing Act 2003 are going to be exercised and administered.  

Page 12



  
To report on the consultation responses received on the Council’s draft 
Statement of Licensing Policy and seek agreement from members on 
amendments where necessary and to recommend adoption of the policy to full 
Council.  
 
Alternatives considered: 
None; it is a statutory duty for all Council’s to determine and publish its 
statement of Licensing Policy and there is no alternative option to this.   
 
Resolved: 

1. That Council be recommended to adopt the amended Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2021-2026.  

 
Reasons for the decision: 
Councils have a statutory duty to prepare and publish a statement of 
principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the 
Licensing Act 2003. This is valid for a five year period and therefore the 
Council is require to review its policy statement every five years to meet its 
statutory requirements and adopt and publish a statement of Licensing Policy. 
The existing statement was effective from 31 January 2016.  
 

76 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following thee items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.    
 
Reason for the decision: 
Should the press and public remain during the debate on the following items, 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

77 SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2021/22 (PART 2) 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which provided 
recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the pre 
Covid-19 budget gap for 2021/22. Following the Local Government Finance 
Settlement 2021/22, further savings proposals will be brought forward should 
any be required. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.  
  
Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the individual reports outline 

Page 13



any alternatives considered. To do nothing was not considered to be an option 
as the Council is legally required to set a balanced budget.  
  
Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.  
  
Resolved: 

1. That the savings proposals rated as green and amber to address the 
budget gap be approved for public consultation starting 4th January 
2021.   
2. That the proposal to earmark £0.5m of one-off funds in contingency, 
which will be allocated to Adult Care Service in 2021/22 if additional 
demand pressures materialise be approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2022/23 to 2023/24. 
The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 by 11th March 
2021.  
 

78 FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT (DLA) REVIEW 
The Board considered the report of the Director of Operations (Adult Social 
Care) which advised that Service users’ in receipt of Adult Care services are 
financially assessed to determine if they are required to make a contribution 
towards their care package. The financial assessment for non-residential care 
takes into account all the service users income (including any benefits) and 
compares this to a nationally agreed ‘minimum income guarantee’.  Amounts 
above the minimum income guarantee will be the contribution / charge the 
service user will be asked to pay towards their care and support. 
 
The report outlined options for consideration with regard to the potential back 
dating of charges in line with the Councils Local Charging Policy. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
The alternatives were outlined within the submitted report. 
 
Resolved: 
1. That Option 3, no backdating of charges be approved. 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
The financial impact on service users would be reduced. 
 

79 BULK PRINTING PROCUREMENT 
Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which advised that 
the current bulk print and mail contract for Revenues and Benefits and Payroll 
Services expires on 31 December 2020 and that a new contract needs to be 
procured.    
 
 
 

Page 14



Alternatives considered: 
The Council could chose to print correspondence in-house, but this would 
require: additional staffing resource; the purchase and maintenance of bulk 
print machines; additional software and ICT costs; premises to run such an 
operation and a contract with a postal delivery company. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That approval be given to commence a procurement using a 
minicompetition against a Government approved framework.  In this 
case a framework from Crown Commercial Services for the  bulk print 
and mail contract for Revenues and Benefits and Payroll Services; 

  
2. That the Director of Resources, in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member for Finance and Director of STaR Procurement, be authorised 
to conclude and agree the contract awards, following the completion of 
the procurement exercise.   
 

Reasons for the Decision: 
The current print and mail contract commenced in July 2017 and is due to 
expire on 30 December 2020.  Discussions have taken place with STaR 
Procurement and they are recommending using a mini-competition against a 
Crown Commercial Services framework.     
  
These services are required to allow the Council to issue correspondence in 
relation to Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefits, Local Council Tax 
Support, Corporate Debt, Adult Care Financial Assessments and Payroll.  
  

80 LITTLEBOROUGH PRIMARY SCHOOL PROJECT 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services which 
advised that the Department for Education (DfE) are looking for “shovel ready” 
construction projects that can be delivered immediately. To this end the 
Council have been working closely with the DfE team drawing up options for a 
Littleborough Primary School re-build project. In the event that the project is 
funded, the Council needs to make a decision on the Littleborough Children’s 
Centre building which falls within potential new school footprint.  
 
Alternatives considered: 
Options for keeping the existing Children’s Centre and completely replacing it 
were described within the report as Option 1 and Option 3. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That approval be given to Littleborough Primary School’s inclusion in 
the Department for Education new re-build project if funded; 

2. That approval be given for Option 2 detailed in this report, which would 
see the Littleborough Children’s Centre re-provided in what is currently 
the Primary school infant block; 

3. That approval be given for the expenditure on Option 2 of £500,000 to 
re-provide Children’s Centre spaces, parking and outside play areas, 
and the £3,000 remedial works expected to be needed to make good 
leisure centre spaces;  

Page 15



4. That approval be given to delegate additional expenditure of no more 
that £249,000 to the Director of Children’s Services on Option 2 on the 
understanding that a full accounting will be reported through the annual 
schools capital budget report, in the event that the demolition and 
rebuilding of the school, and re-provision of the Children’s Centre 
project budget is exceeded as full feasibility on the new school is 
completed. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
Following a statement on a new school re-building programme from the Prime 
Minister in June, the Department for Education, DfE have been 
communicating with the Head Teacher at Littleborough Primary School and 
Rochdale Council, and conducting a full site survey and feasibility assessment 
with the potential of the school being included on the list of possible schemes.  
 
The DfE requires that the Littleborough Primary School project is “shovel 
ready” to be included.   
  
The Littleborough Campus includes the Link4Life Leisure centre, the 
Littleborough Children’s Centre and the Primary school and all these elements 
are affected by the inclusion of the school on the rebuild list.  
 
 

81 PROPOSED CHANGES TO EM SERVICES - BOWLEE NURSERY 
Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
advised that a number of service changes, income opportunities and savings 
proposals have been identified by Environmental Management and approved 
for progress by Cabinet on 25th August 2020. As part of the outcome of 
consultation there is now a proposed amendment to the recommendation 
relating to Bowlee Nursery.   
 
Alternatives considered: 
There were no alternatives put forward within the report. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the recommendations as detailed within the submitted report be 
approved. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
At Cabinet on 25th August 2020 a report of the Assistant Director for Place 
outlined proposed changes to Environmental Management service which 
contained three recommendations relating to savings proposals from within 
the service.    
 
Following a period of consultation, there is now a proposed amendment to the 
recommendation relating to Bowlee Nursery.   
 

Page 16



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 26th January 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Quality of Place 
Report Author Paul Wotton 
Public Document  

 

 

Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway, Rochdale 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
1.3 

Proposals to introduce some No Waiting At Any Time and Loading 
Restrictions on parts of Queensway (A664), Edinburgh Way (A664) and 
Hartley Lane, Rochdale have been advertised and 10 objections received. 
 
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee considered the 
objections at its meeting on 20 October 2020 and recommends to Cabinet that 
a Traffic Order of this nature is not required in this particular area. 
 
The proposed Order affects highways of strategic importance over which 
Cabinet has the power to determine an outcome. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet should consider the proposed Traffic Regulation Order, Borough of 
Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) 
(Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.170) Order and 
determine whether the Order be implemented or not and if so to what extent. 
 
When considering the report, due to the highways being of strategic 
importance, the Delegated Sub-Committee had the power to confirm the 
proposals and the Order in accordance with the Council’s constitution Part 3 
Section 8.2.2. 
 
As the Sub-Committee did not wish to confirm the proposals and Order, the 
matter is referred to Cabinet for a decision. 
 
Sub-Committee Minute from 20 October 2020 meeting 
 
OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC ORDER – QUEENSWAY, ROCHDALE  
24 
The Township Sub-Committee received a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods that asked Members to consider an objection that had been 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
2.6 
 

received to a proposed Traffic Regulation order at Queensway, Rochdale. The 
proposals introduce no waiting at any time and loading restrictions on parts of 
Queensway, Edinburgh Way and Hartley Lane. After consultation with 
residents in the local area, 10 objections were received. The consultation 
exercise was completed in and the conclusions of this consultation had been 
forwarded to the Ward Members. The Sub-Committee also considered a 
representation from a local resident objecting to the proposals 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
The Sub-Committee could consider recommending that the proposal be 
amended or abandoned. If the Sub-Committee decided not to introduce the 
restrictions proposed in the report, then the issues with parked vehicles, which 
were contained therein would not have been addressed. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Sub-Committee recommends to Cabinet that the proposed 
Traffic Regulation Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of 
Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 
2008) (Amendment) (No.155) Order not be implemented: 
 

2. That as the proposed Traffic Regulation Order relates to a strategic 
route that the matter be referred to Cabinet determine. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Sub Committee considered that a Traffic Order of this nature was not 
required in this particular area. 
 
Where a proposed Traffic Regulation Order relates to a strategic route and the 
Committee is not minded to support the Traffic Order, the matter is referred to 
Cabinet to determine. 
 
Eligible for Call-in: Yes. 

 
It remains the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be 
introduced as advertised to address the issue of parked cars impeding 
southwest-bound traffic approaching the roundabout situated at the junction of 
Queensway and Edinburgh Way. The scheme plan as advertised is shown at 
the end of this report. 
 
Furthermore, in considering the objections received, Cabinet may wish to 
approve an alternative described in Section 4.18 of this report (repeated from 
the Township Report) and shown on the plan at the end of this report which 
reduces the extent of proposals on the south side of Queensway between 
Hartley Lane and the Edinburgh Way roundabout be implemented, the 
intention of which is to try and assist those objectors who are residents most 
directly affected by the original scheme whilst still achieving an improvement 
in traffic flow. Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee did not 
support this scaled down alternative. 

Page 18



 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 

The complete detailed report submitted to Rochdale South Township 
Delegated Sub-Committee on 20 October 2020 forms supporting Appendix 1 
to this report. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 

These are described in supporting Appendix 1 which includes a scaled down 
alternative proposal which together with the originally advertised proposal did 
not receive the Sub-Committee’s support. 
 
The scaled down alternative proposal is repeated here: 
 
4.18.1 In view of the objections received, which are concentrated on the 

section of Queensway between Hartley Lane and Edinburgh Way 
roundabout this part of the scheme merits some further examination. 

 
4.18.2 Specifically referring to the south side of Queensway, making no 

alteration to the unrestricted section between Hartley Lane and the 
roundabout would not address the observed traffic capacity issue. 

 
4.18.3 Taking into account the single traffic lane along Queensway for some 

1000 metres from the Oldham Road, Lower Place gyratory to Hartley 
Lane, it is observed that the ability to form two lanes on the approach to 
the roundabout is limited by such a long length of single lane where 
flows are interrupted by pedestrian crossings, side road junctions, traffic 
turning across at central reserve gaps, and into and out of driveways. 

 
4.18.4 Vehicles parked close to the roundabout impede traffic flow onto it by 

restricting the carriageway to a single lane. This causes a queue back 
to the pelican crossing situated to the east of Hartley Lane, which 
significantly increases during the peak period. 

 
4.18.5 The two properties without driveways situated at significant height 

above Queensway are located closest to Hartley Lane, whilst those 
closest to the roundabout have lesser or no elevation issues and 
established driveways. 

 
4.18.6 Leaving the section of Queensway closest to Hartley Lane without 

restrictions, and introducing them for the final 46 metres leading up to 
the roundabout would retain some 59 metres of kerb space without 
restrictions outside the properties with the least parking provision and/or 
no possibility of creating some. 

 
4.18.7 It is the Highways officers’ view that protecting the 46 metres length of 

Queensway leading up to the roundabout with the advertised restriction 
times of No Waiting At Any Time and No Loading Monday-Friday 7.30-
9.30am & 4.00-6.30pm would form an acceptable compromise from a 

Page 19



traffic flow point of view and offer some unrestricted parking provision. 
See the plan contained in Appendix E. 

 
4.18.8 If restrictions are introduced to this reduced extent the observed queue 

length on Queensway would be shortened, and the ability to form a two 
lane approach to the roundabout would offer an improvement on the 
current situation however would not offer the full benefits of the original 
proposal. 

 
4.18.9 Even the reduced amount of restrictions would give the approaching 

driver a clearer view of the roundabout without the distraction to their 
field of view by parked cars. 

 
4.18.10 The reduced scheme, if implemented would be seen to have paid 

some regard to the objections made whilst still achieving most of the 
schemes objective of improving traffic flow, and also paying regard to 
two Equality Act protected characteristics as further indicated in 
Appendix F. 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 As previously described and found in supporting Appendix 1. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 As previously described and found in supporting Appendix 1 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 As previously described and found in supporting Appendix 1 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Report to Rochdale South 
Township Delegated Sub- 
Committee on 20 October 2020 

Situated in this meeting’s Agenda 
Documents as Appendix 1 

 

For Further Information Contact: Paul Wotton, , 
paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 20



Scheme plan as advertised

 

  

Page 21



Queensway south side 

Alternative Plan 

 

Page 22



 

Report to Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 20th October 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment 
Report Author Paul Wotton 
Public Document  

 

 

Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway Rochdale 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Proposals to introduce some No Waiting At Any Time and Loading 

Restrictions on parts of Queensway (A664), Edinburgh Way (A664) and 

Hartley Lane, Rochdale have been advertised and 10 objections received. 

 

1.2 This report explains the background to the proposal and comments upon the 

points made by the objectors to assist the Committee in coming to a decision 

about the proposed Order’s introduction. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 

Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 

(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.170) 

Order be 

 implemented as advertised, or 

 referred for Cabinet to determine should the Committee not feel fully 

able to support the proposal in its entirety. 

 

2.2 The proposed waiting and loading restrictions to be introduced on Queensway 

(A664) and Edinburgh Way (A664) are part of the Borough’s Strategic Road 

network. 

 

2.3 It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order relates to 

highways of strategic importance and is processed in accordance with the 

Council’s constitution Part 3 Section 8.2.2 in that the Committee has 

delegated power to confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the 

Committee wish not to confirm the proposals and the Order, the matter must 

be referred to Cabinet for decision. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



 

2.4 It is the recommendation of Highways Officers that the Order should be 

introduced as advertised to address the issue of parked cars impeding 

southwest-bound traffic approaching the roundabout situated at the junction of 

Queensway and Edinburgh Way. 

 

2.5 Furthermore, in considering the objections received, the Committee may wish 

to offer a recommendation to Cabinet that an alternative described in Section 

4.18 of this report and shown on the plan at Appendix E which reduces the 

extent of proposals on the south side of Queensway between Hartley Lane 

and the Edinburgh Way roundabout be implemented, the intention of which is 

to try and assist those objectors who are residents most directly affected by 

the original scheme whilst still achieving an improvement in traffic flow. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3.1 Copy of Statement of Reasons 

 

3.1.1 Officers have noted issues with parked vehicles on the A664 along 

Queensway on the approach to the roundabout connecting with Edinburgh 

Way. As part of a scheme to improve the efficiency of key routes across the 

network, funding has been received from TfGM to promote new restrictions in 

this location. 

 

3.1.2 Queensway forms part of the A664 and the outer orbital route in Rochdale. It 

is a strategic route having a further higher classification status as a primary 

route. It is also a bus route and provides one of the main links to the motorway 

network from Rochdale. 

 

3.1.3 On the south east side of Queensway on the approach to the roundabout at 

Edinburgh Way there are two traffic lanes. There are no parking restrictions in 

place and on-street parking regularly occurs. The parking results in the inside 

lane becoming unusable which reduces the number of vehicles able to queue 

at the junction, reducing the capacity and efficiency of the junction. This 

creates unnecessary delays on one of Rochdale’s key strategic routes. 

 

3.1.4 The primary destination and major flow for south-westbound traffic 

approaching the roundabout is the motorway network A627(M) and (M62), the 

former of which is accessed directly from Edinburgh Way. The formation of 

two lanes on the approach to the roundabout allows for two lanes of traffic to 

circulate the roundabout and connect directly with the two-lanes on Edinburgh 

Way. Parked vehicles on the approach to the roundabout on Queensway 

therefore restrict this from happening. 

 

Page 8Page 24



3.1.5 To cater for any displacement which may occur as a result of new restrictions 

on the south east side, it is also proposed to introduce 24 hour waiting and 

loading restrictions on the north west side to protect an area of highway where 

motorists are required to merge from two lanes into one. 

 

3.1.6 It is also proposed to introduce new lane destination wording markings and 

advanced signage which will supplement existing lane arrows to encourage 

the use of both approach lanes for motorway-bound traffic. Traffic movements 

will be monitored and if necessary new circulatory road markings will be 

introduced on the roundabout to further define and confirm the road space as 

two-lanes. This will further improve the efficiency of the roundabout and 

reduce the risk of collisions involving circulating traffic. 

 

3.1.7 It is therefore proposed to introduce 24 hour prohibition of waiting restrictions 

on both sides on Queensway between Hartley Lane and the roundabout 

connecting Queensway with Edinburgh Way, together with peak time loading 

restrictions on the south east side, and a prohibition of loading on the north 

west side. Lane destination wording to supplement existing arrows on the 

approach to the roundabout is detailed on the accompanying plan. 

 

3.1.8 The five year injury accident record shows one recorded collision along 

Queensway between Hartley Lane and the roundabout and two recorded 

collisions on the roundabout itself. 

 

3.1.9 It is proposed to promote prohibition of waiting restrictions and prohibition of 

loading restrictions on the Queensway and Edinburgh Way roundabout. 

 

3.1.10 On the opposite approach along Queensway to the roundabout from the 

Castleton direction it is proposed to introduce a prohibition of waiting 

restriction to fill the gaps in existing restrictions to improve traffic flow and 

protect established right turn lanes. Some prohibition of loading is included on 

the south east side as far as Queens Drive, and only as far as a bus stop 

situated on the north west side close to Gorrels Way. 

 

3.1.11 The proposed restrictions will improve the efficiency of the roundabout and the 

route between Queensway and the motorway network. The road markings will 

reduce the risk of accidents involving circulating traffic by better defining the 

road space. 

 

3.1.12 Appendix A is a plan showing the proposed restrictions 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Ten objections were received to the proposals mostly from residents, their 

representatives, or persons with an interest in the properties situated on the 

Page 9Page 25



south side of Queensway between Hartley Lane and the Edinburgh Way 

roundabout. See Appendix C. 

 

4.2 A minor proportion of the objectors reside on the north side of this section of 

Queensway and are concerned about the displacement of parked vehicles 

should the Order be introduced. 

 

4.3 None of the objections relate to the remainder of the scheme at the 

roundabout or the section of Queensway beyond the roundabout towards 

Castleton. 

 

4.4 The Council in its role as Highway Authority, has a duty of care to ensure the 

safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic Management Act 

2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic. 

 

4.5 In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only 

right the general public has on a highway is a right of passage along it and the 

Council has no duty to provide off-street parking. 

 

4.6 Ward members and some objectors mention an impact/equality assessment 

ought to have been carried out when the proposals were developed. 

 

4.7 The principal aim of the scheme is to make an improvement to traffic flow on 

the highway network, thus benefitting all highway users. 

 

4.8 Without specific knowledge of individual affected residents’ circumstances, the 

proposals were advertised. 

 

4.9 An Equality Impact Assessment written after receipt of the objections forms 

Appendix F of this report. 

 

4.10 The number of objections together with their concentrated location and 

descriptive content demonstrate and thus allow consideration of some 

protected equality characteristics namely age and disability, to be balanced 

against the highway aims of the proposals. 

 

4.11 It is not known if any of the objectors are disabled badge holders. The usual 

arrangement for blue badge holders to park for up to 3 hours on waiting 

restrictions will apply other than at times when there are loading restrictions. 

 

4.12 It is apparent from some of the objections together with easily observed 

topographical features of properties situated on the south side of Queensway 

between Hartley Lane and the Edinburgh Way roundabout that some 

residents have age related mobility issues and could be inconvenienced or 

possibly disadvantaged by the proposed restrictions which could result in a 

Page 10Page 26



reduction in their independence, particularly where there is limited or no 

opportunity to create off-street parking provision due to the height some 

properties are situated at above Queensway. 

 

4.13 There are 8 houses situated on the south side of Queensway between Hartley 

Lane and Edinburgh Way roundabout some 6 of which have varying amounts 

of driveway provision. 

 

4.14 The two houses closest to Hartley Lane are at the greatest height above 

Queensway, do not have driveways, and it appears difficult or impossible to 

create them there. 

 

4.15 The level difference affecting the remaining 6 houses reduces with their 

driveways becoming flatter, more easily used, and of greater size in the 

direction of Edinburgh Way roundabout. 

 

4.16 Notwithstanding the above comments it is felt by highways officers that the 

scheme is justifiable on the grounds of expedient movement of traffic. 

 

4.17 Appendix D contains the response to objections received 

 
4.18 Alternatives Considered 
 
4.18.1 In view of the objections received, which are concentrated on the section of 

Queensway between Hartley Lane and Edinburgh Way roundabout this part of 

the scheme merits some further examination. 

 

4.18.2 Specifically referring to the south side of Queensway, making no alteration to 

the unrestricted section between Hartley Lane and the roundabout would not 

address the observed traffic capacity issue. 

 

4.18.3 Taking into account the single traffic lane along Queensway for some 1000 

metres from the Oldham Road, Lower Place gyratory to Hartley Lane, it is 

observed that the ability to form two lanes on the approach to the roundabout 

is limited by such a long length of single lane where flows are interrupted by 

pedestrian crossings, side road junctions, traffic turning across at central 

reserve gaps, and into and out of driveways. 

 

4.18.4 Vehicles parked close to the roundabout impede traffic flow onto it by 

restricting the carriageway to a single lane. This causes a queue back to the 

pelican crossing situated to the east of Hartley Lane, which significantly 

increases during the peak period. 

 

Page 11Page 27



4.18.5 The two properties without driveways situated at significant height above 

Queensway are located closest to Hartley Lane, whilst those closest to the 

roundabout have lesser or no elevation issues and established driveways. 

 

4.18.6 Leaving the section of Queensway closest to Hartley Lane without restrictions, 

and introducing them for the final 46 metres leading up to the roundabout 

would retain some 59 metres of kerb space without restrictions outside the 

properties with the least parking provision and/or no possibility of creating 

some. 

 

4.18.7 It is the Highways officers’ view that protecting the 46 metres length of 

Queensway leading up to the roundabout with the advertised restriction times 

of No Waiting At Any Time and No Loading Monday-Friday 7.30-9.30am & 

4.00-6.30pm would form an acceptable compromise from a traffic flow point of 

view and offer some unrestricted parking provision. See the plan contained in 

Appendix E. 

 

4.18.8 If restrictions are introduced to this reduced extent the observed queue length 

on Queensway would be shortened, and the ability to form a two lane 

approach to the roundabout would offer an improvement on the current 

situation however would not offer the full benefits of the original proposal. 

 

4.18.9 Even the reduced amount of restrictions would give the approaching driver a 

clearer view of the roundabout without the distraction to their field of view by 

parked cars. 

 

4.18.10 The reduced scheme, if implemented would be seen to have paid some 

regard to the objections made whilst still achieving most of the schemes 

objective of improving traffic flow, and also paying regard to two Equality Act 

protected characteristics as further indicated in Appendix F. 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 The estimated cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is £4000 

funded by Transport for Greater Manchester as part of the Mayor of Greater 
Manchester’s congestion deal funding 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 

and efficiently for all traffic (including pedestrians) including maintaining the 

expeditious movement of traffic. 

 

6.2 The offered relaxation represents a scaling down of the originally proposed 

and advertised restrictions on part of the south side of Queensway 

(westbound traffic direction) between Hartley Lane and the Queensway and 

Page 12Page 28



Edinburgh Way roundabout and if implemented would demonstrate 

consideration of sections of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 stated 

below. 

 

6.3 It is expedient to make the proposed Order for facilitating the safe passage of 

traffic, including pedestrians (Sections 1(1)(a) and 1(1)c) and having balanced 

this against the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to 

premises (Sections 122(1) and 122(2)(a)). 

 

6.4 Whilst the scheme as originally advertised contains standard exemptions that 

to some extent afford disabled badge holders some concessions, the 

proposed reduction in the extent of the restrictions as shown in Appendices E 

and F demonstrates further mitigation for affected protected characteristics 

and consideration of Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place part of which involved 

inviting any member of the public to raise an objection to the proposed TRO 

which form the subject of this report. 

 

7.2 The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 

Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 

21st  October 2019. 

 

7.3 Notices of Intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 

on 23rd October 2019 – See Appendix B. 

 

7.4 The objection period ran until 13th November 2019. 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

For Further Information Contact: Paul Wotton, 
Paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 13Page 29



APPENDIX A – Scheme plan as advertised

 

  

Page 14Page 30



APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention 
TRO Ref No H60/1319 

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE 

((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS) 

(VARIOUS STREETS) (ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008) 

(AMENDMENT) (NO. 170) ORDER 

Queensway, Edinburgh Way, and Hartley Lane, Rochdale 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers 

under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an 

Order, the effect of which would be to:- 

(1)  Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 

(Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:- 

Schedule No. 1.1 

No Waiting At Any Time 

Edinburgh Way, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(ii) the north east side from its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway 

with Edinburgh Way for a distance of 11 metres in a north westerly direction 

 

Queensway, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(xi) the south east side from a point 10 metres north east of its junction with Hartley 

Lane to its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh 

Way 

n(xii) the south east side from its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway 

with Edinburgh Way to a point 60 metres east of its junction with Cowm Top Lane 

n(xiii) the north west side from its junction with Hartley Lane to its junction with the 

roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh Way 

n(xiv) the north west side from its junction with Gorrels Way to a point 59 metres north 

east of the north easterly kerbline of Cowm Top Lane 

 

Hartley Lane, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(viii) both sides from its junction with Queensway for a distance of 10 metres in a 

northerly direction 

 

The roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh Way, Balderstone and 

Kirkholt Ward 

n(i) its entire perimeter 

 

 

Schedule No. 4.1 

No Loading At Any Time 

 

Edinburgh Way, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(i) both sides from its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway with 

Edinburgh Way for a distance of 11 metres in a north westerly direction 

 

Queensway, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(ix) the south east side from its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway 

with Edinburgh Way to its junction with Queens Drive 

n(x) the north west side from its junction with Hartley Lane to its junction with the 

roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh Way 

Page 15Page 31



n(xi) the north west side from its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway 

with Edinburgh Way to a point 36 metres south west of its junction with Gorrels 

Way 

 

The roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh Way, Balderstone and 

Kirkholt Ward 

n(i) its entire perimeter 

 

 

Schedule No 5.15 

No Loading Monday–Friday 7.30-9.30am & 4.00-6.30pm 

 

Queensway, Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward 

n(i) the south east side from a point 10 metres north east of its junction with Hartley 

Lane to its junction with the roundabout connecting Queensway with Edinburgh 

Way 

 

 

(2)  Revoke those parts of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 

Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008, as follows:- 

 

Schedule No. 1.1 

No Waiting At Any Time 

 

Queensway, Balderstone & Kirkholt Ward 

n(i) south westerly side from its junction with Hartley Lane for a distance of 10 

metres in a south westerly direction 

n(ii) south westerly side from its junction with Hartley Lane for a distance of 10 

metres in a north easterly direction 

n(iii) the south side from a point 15 metres east of its junction with Queens Drive to a 

point 15 metres west of its junction with Queens Drive 

 

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, together 

with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at The 

Customer Services Centre, Ground Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 

OL16 1XU during normal office hours, or viewed on the Council’s website 

www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 0300 303 8879. 

 

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 

made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 

Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

to reach the Council on or before 13th November 2019, quoting H60/1319. 

 

Dated this 23rd day of October 2019 

 
David Wilcock 

Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)  

Resources Directorate 

Rochdale Borough Council 

Number One Riverside 

Smith Street 

ROCHDALE 

OL16 1XU 

Page 16Page 32

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads


APPENDIX C – Objections Received 

 

Objector 1 
                         .             . &          .           .,  

    . Queensway, Rochdale 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

H60/1319 Objection 
To whom it may concern,  
 
I write to you with regards to TRO Ref No H60/1319. I would like to raise objections and comments to 
argue against this proposal.  
 

As a resident of   . Queensway these proposals cause me great concern. I would like to request any 

documentation you have with regards to impact studies/assessments that were made in relation to the 
local residents, and indeed the impact upon traffic. This proposal will have a major impact upon parking 
in the area. Introducing these parking restrictions will not reduce the number of vehicles in the area that 
require parking, but only cause issue elsewhere. I would argue that the present situation is not in need of 
this proposal.  
 
There is no alternative parking available. Rochdale Council have implemented double yellow lines in many 
of the surrounding streets and areas within the local community, and have also elected to build on all of 
the spare pieces of land. This has resulted in a reduction in the amount of parking spaces available. The 
nearest, most reasonable location is the doctors’ surgery car park on Queens Drive, which is only available 
to NHS staff and patients. Where do we park? 
 

The primary source of income for our home is        . a self-employed        ., who owns a works van in 

order to enable him to commute with his multitude of tools to work. The proposed restriction of loading 
Mon – Fri 7.30–9.30am & 4 – 6.30pm encompass those critical times in which he departs for work, and 
arrives home. Car theft has risen by 80% in the past 4 years according to figures from GMP 
https://www.manchestereveningnews.co.uk/news/greater-manchester-news/been-huge-rise-car-thefts-
16582117 
Not being able to load/unload the works van in front of our property makes the tools and equipment, 
which are of significant value, susceptible to this crime. This would have a massive, damaging impact upon 
our family and would cause us significant financial, and emotional distress. This very proposal would 
actively increase the chances of this happening.  
 
https://assets.ctfassets.net/nv7y93idf4jq/3dT1xGoQu4EE2Cqu80iGaG/e256a7e8166eb3f55eb74eda5cd0a
3f6/17-1260_Bus_Times_433_434.pdf 
With reference to the ‘Statement of Reasons’ documentation, discussing Queensway as part of the A664. 
‘It is also a bus route and provides one of the main links to the motorway network from Rochdale’. The 
bus that is being referred to is the 434/433 service which utilises the road once per hour. The service 
begins at 0718, and ends at 1755 Monday – Friday. I fail to see how a single bus, with a frequency of once 
per hour forms such an integral part of the ‘Statement of Reasons’ documentation in favour of these 
proposals. The regularity of these buses is further reduced on Saturday, Sundays and public holidays.  
 
“The five-year injury accident record shows one recorded collision along Queensway between Hartley Lane 
and the roundabout and two recorded collisions on the roundabout itself.” These collisions have mainly 
been a result of reckless driving at night at excessive speeds. These issues have previously been raised 
with councillor Meredith, but little action has been taken as a result of this. The location of parked cars 
on Queensway in relation to this is entirely irrelevant. 
 
“The parking results in the inside lane becoming unusable which reduces the number of vehicles able to 
queue at the junction, reducing the capacity and efficiency of the junction. This creates unnecessary 
delays on one of Rochdale’s key strategic routes.” The traffic flow at the junction is smooth and very 
rarely congested. Traffic, like any road in the world has busier and lighter periods. Bottlenecks are of 
course to be avoided to improve efficiency. However, the entirety of Queensway is a single carriage road, 
until the staggered pedestrian crossing (as indicated on document: A2/H60/1319/001/RevD – The Ordnance 
Survey Map.) westbound and eastbound, then the road opens to 2 lanes for all of approximately 150m up 
to the roundabout junction. Any traffic that has been forced to queue on this route, is likely already doing 
so for the preceding 970m (approx.) from the junction with the A671 to the  pedestrian crossing.  
 
Prices correct as of Sunday 27th October 2019: 

Page 17Page 33

https://www.manchestereveningnews.co.uk/news/greater-manchester-news/been-huge-rise-car-thefts-16582117
https://www.manchestereveningnews.co.uk/news/greater-manchester-news/been-huge-rise-car-thefts-16582117
https://assets.ctfassets.net/nv7y93idf4jq/3dT1xGoQu4EE2Cqu80iGaG/e256a7e8166eb3f55eb74eda5cd0a3f6/17-1260_Bus_Times_433_434.pdf
https://assets.ctfassets.net/nv7y93idf4jq/3dT1xGoQu4EE2Cqu80iGaG/e256a7e8166eb3f55eb74eda5cd0a3f6/17-1260_Bus_Times_433_434.pdf


House prices naturally decrease when parking is not available for prospective buyers. I have used 
Rightmove for this data. I searched for properties for sale in the OL11 postcode area, and filtered by Semi-
Detached and with parking, as well as not specifying parking. (There is no option to search by ‘no parking’). 
The search with parking yielded 37 results, and not specified, 41. The average price of properties using 
this search with paring is £172,534. Not specified it is £167,436. This is a reduction of £5,098 on average. 
Taking into consideration that the results shown by the Rightmove website with ‘not specified’ parking, 
would include those from the search ‘with parking’ leads me to conclude that this reduction in property 
value is a minimum amount.  
 
In the event of us having to park our vehicles on a street away from home, this will increase insurance 
premiums. Car insurance is already cripplingly expensive, and can cause financial issues for many. 
Declaring that your vehicle is parked on a ‘street away from home’ overnight is seen as an increased level 
of risk and therefore increases premiums. These vehicles are relied on by those in residence at Queensway, 
to enable us to attend our jobs, charity work, universities etc. Increases in already expensive insurance 
can make these things no longer financially viable.  
 
One potential solution to this issue which would satisfy both parties is to install dropped kerbs along this 
stretch of approx. 150m road and have allocated parking lines which would enable residents to park partly 
on the road and partly on the pavement, thus increasing the real estate available on the road, enabling 
the use of both lanes for traffic approaching the roundabout, and addressing all of the aforementioned 
issues regarding parking. An example of this solution is included below from Hawthorne Road, Bootle 
Merseyside.  
 

 

 
I sincerely hope we are able to come to a solution that satisfies all parties with regards to this,  
 
Kind regards,  
 

         .       . &       .            . 
On behalf of, the residents of    . Queensway, Rochdale OL11     . 
 

 

Page 18Page 34



 

Objector 2             .                         .,    . Queensway, Rochdale 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Objection to waiting and loading restriction 
 
To whom this may concern. 

Emailing in regards to the proposed changes to make Queensway road on no waiting or loading 

area by placing double yellow line on Queensway road. 

I have 3 small children nowhere else to park and one busy main road which I live on. My house 

value would drop as would the safety on my family and possessions. 

This decision is ludacris and will not effect the flow of traffic or congestion which is minimal at 

Preston as it is. 

If you do go ahead who will be paying for the depreciation of my property and the safety of my 

children and family. 

The decision needs to be reversed or Rochdale council will hold responsiblilty for any damages 

to my family safety or possession. 

Kind regards  

Resident of    . Queensway road Rochdale 

 

  

Page 19Page 35



Objector 3                 .      .,    . Queensway, Rochdale 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Queensway no parking order 

 

Hi, 

My name is                .      . and my address is    . Queensway, Rochdale.  

I am emailing because of Notice of Intention of a proposed Traffic Regulation Order reference 

H60/1319.  

I am a widow and over 70 years old. My family visit me a lot. Two weeks ago I had to spend 9 

hours in A&E because of my high blood pressure so my family had to come and see me. 

One of my daughter also lives on Queensway with small children and a baby. Most of our 

neighbours are in the similar position. 

My complain and I am sure others is too that where do we or visitors park our cars. As Queens 

drive has double yellow lines  too, most of the residence dont have driveway either on 

Queensway. 

Are the residence of Queensway not important. 

Please do not try to save money and let the residents of Queensway suffer. 

I would really appreciate if you reconsider your decision and let the Queensway residents live 

comfortably. 

I am hoping that you will change your mind. I will be waiting for the reply. 

Thank you. 

Yours sincerely  

              .      .. 

 

  

Page 20Page 36



 

Objector 4          .             .,    . Queensway, Rochdale 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Objection to proposed traffic restriction Ref: H60/1319  
 

 

 

Page 21Page 37



 

 

Page 22Page 38



 

 

Page 23Page 39



 

 

 

           

           .             .  

 

 

Objector 5       .         .,    . Queensway  

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Objection Against Planning 

REF: H60/1319 

 

To whom it concerns, 

 
I am writing to object against the planning for double yellow planned parking on 

Queensway. I currently reside at    . Queensway, although I do not park outside the front of 

the house on Queensway, we have parking access round the back of the house on Dunlop 

Avenue. We already have issues with the parking on Dunlop Avenue, with other residents 

parking across peoples driveways and the road is extremely narrow. I strongly believe that 

with the parking restrictions being imposed on Queensway, it will force the residents on the 

opposite side of the road to my house to look for the nearest alternative parking available to 

them. This will more than likely be the back of my house on Dunlop Avenue where they can 

walk through the alleyway and towards their houses. This would cause parking wars on 

Dunlop Avenue, which I do not want to engage in. 

 

The planning permission will not only affect the residents who rely on the parking outside 

their homes between 223 - 237 Queensway, it will also affect myself and other residents 

who rely on the parking on Dunlop Avenue.  

 

Kind Regards 
       .        . & the residents of    . Queensway. 

 
  

Page 24Page 40



Objector 6        .          .,    . Queensway, Rochdale  

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Two emails received are shown below 

Objection 

 
I live at    . Queensway Rochdale  OL11    ., and I have done for over 30 yrs,   I strongly object to 

having double yellow and no parking outside my house,  I'm 73 yrs old and I regularly  attend 

The Christie Hospital in Manchester for scans on my lung,   my Son needs to Beable to park 

outside my home to pick me up ,  I also rely on taxis  to pick me up from my home  when I go 

out.  I'm fully dependent  on my food shopping being delivered from tesco's  they have to stop 

outside my home  they cannot be expected to park streets away,  I have to have a 

gardener  with my heath  and age I just couldn't do it myself , and again the gardener  cannot 

be expected to park  streets away ,   I have family with two young children age 1 and 3  they 

need to park outside my home  for easy access in getting the children in my  house,   l also have 

a Daughter in law whos got a disabled  badge fo her car  she needs to beable to park outside 

my house, The value of my house would be greatly  devalued  if these proposals  go 

ahead,  would I get compensation  for that. The people who have thought of this idea to put 

double yellow lines down have not considered  the residents at all it is not just about traffic  is 

about the impact it will have on people's lives ,   I'm very worried indeed about this 

happening  I'm old and not in good heath the people I have already mensioned to you 

absolutely  need to beable  to park outside my house,   please don't  let this proposal  go 

through,           .         .  

Objection 

 
I live at    . Queensway Rochdale OL11    .,  I have already sent you a e-mail stating why I object 

to this proposal,   I have read your reasons why you want to put double yellow lines outside my 

house, I live on the left side of the road going towards Oldham road there is never ever cars 

parked on this side , so therefore traffic pass without any trouble at all, the only time there is  a 

slight build up is at tea  lasting for a very short time and that can be due to the pelican 

crossing  you also mension it being on a bus route,  I have lived here over 30 yrs and the bus 

has never ever had trouble passing my house,  we have one bus per hour and from Monday to 

Friday after 3 o clock  the next bus is not till 5 o'clock  no service at all on Sundays so you can 

hardly call it a bus route,  on the opposite  side they do have lots of cars parked up  so passing 

them going towards the roundabout  may be difficult  but  that certainly  does not apply  to this 

side of the road  so therefore double yellow lines are absolutely  not necessary,  it's not all 

about  traffic  not a thought has been made for the residents and the 

absolute  inconvenience  this will cause          .         .  

 
 
  

Page 25Page 41



 

Objector 7              . 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

H60/1319 
 
Hi 

We are objecting to the new  parking rules starting on Queensway.  

This makes it difficult for us to visit our mother who lives there. She is a pensioner.  

Thanks 

        .. 

 
 
 

Objector 8 
       .        ., on behalf of 

       . and       .        .,    . Queensway 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

OBJECTION EMAIL to Queensway double yellow lines planning permission for 
Hartley Lane/Edinburgh Way 

 

Hello, 

I am writing this email to state my objection to the proposed waiting & loading restrictions on 

Queensway. 

      . and       .       . (my Grandparents) live at    . Queensway, and have done so for 

approximately 40 years. They are aged 70 and 80 years old respectively. They do not own a 

vehicle, yet having double yellow lines outside their house would have an absolutely huge 

impact on their everyday lives. 

Firstly, my grandparents have 5 children and many grandchildren who visit them on a daily 

basis, all of whom need to be able to park their cars outside the house, as there is nowhere else 

in the local vicinity they would be able to park should double yellow lines be introduced. As my 

Grandparents are an elderly couple, they both attend regular medical/doctors/hospital 

appointments which they are only able to attend if being driven by car, as neither of them are 

currently very mobile -       . in-particular is currently suffering from ill health and has weekly 

visits to the hospital and doctors. When family are unable to take    .,    . takes a taxi to the 

hospital with       .. If double yellow lines are placed outside their house, no taxi would be able 

to park outside to pick them up - and again there is absolutely nowhere else in the local vicinity 

that a taxi would be able to park. How can they seriously be expected to attend these regular 

appointments without being able to enter a vehicle outside their own home where they have 

lived for 40 years? 

Page 26Page 42



Secondly, there is no local supermarket close to    . Queensway (the most local now being 

Tesco, over a mile away). How would my Grandparents be expected to bring their groceries 

from over a mile away without the aid of a vehicle/taxi to bring them to their door? Especially 

at their age, and especially in Cold/winter weather conditions. My Grandparents have disabled 

railings installed throughout their house as they are both frail and at risk of falling. The risk of 

falling and serious injury would be greatly increased for them both if they are required to walk 

long distances in order to enter a vehicle in order to be taken to wherever it is they need to go. 

Also, my Grandparents do not have a driveway, as have never owned a vehicle. They are 

elderly and living on a pension, and as a result do not have the money to be able to afford to 

install a driveway in their front garden. Therefore, there would be absolutely nowhere AT ALL 

for visitors or taxis to park should double yellow lines be introduced. 

Furthermore, again, my Grandparents have lived at this address for 40 years - traffic outside 

the house has never EVER been an issue. I can further confirm this as I myself have lived at the 

property when I was much younger, and parking/driving outside the house has never been 

difficult . Why make such drastic changes to a road where changes are not so drastically 

needed??? 

In addition to all of this, the lack of parking outside the house would de-value my Grandparents 

home by up to £5000. This is simply unfair. 

Would it not be possible to install permit parking only? In an attempt to minimise the amount 

of parked cars along the road? Rather then just dismiss the notion of absolutely anybody 

parking there at all. 

Such a huge change to the everyday life of my Grandparents would be deeply unsettling for 

both of them. They are already both extremely worried about the huge change they could 

potentially be facing, and also worried about the affect it will have on their immediate family.  

Further to this email I shall be writing to the local councillors      .      . and      .      ., and also 

the local MP to voice my concerns on behalf of my Grandparents - and on behalf of the rest of 

the worried residents of Queensway. 

I deeply hope you reconsider your proposals after considering the immense lasting effects 

upon the local residents that these plans will have. 

Thanks 

       .        . 

 
  

Page 27Page 43



 

Objector 9       .       . 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

Queensway ref: H60/1319 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 

 

I have read the sign posted along Queensway in relation to placing a traffic order along 

Queensway, Edinburgh Way and Hartley lane. I am writing to object to this order ref:H60/1319. 

 

My  mum is 70 years old and a widow. She is relies on her family's support and help daily. By 

placing this order it will significantly cause problems on both parts into seeing her as the 

nearest available space is at least 1 mile  from her house. We often take her to appointments 

and this will not be possible as it will mean for her to walk to the car which is not parked 

immediately outside her front house.  

 

As well as the practicalities , this traffic order will have a significant impact on her mental 

wellbeing by not having daily contact with her family. She has three daughters of which each of 

us in turn sleeps over every night including the weekends as she does not feel comfortable 

being on her own. Having this traffic order will prevent her own family from taking her care of 

her in this way.  

 

I strongly urge you to reconsider this order due to the reasons stated above. 

 

Regards, 

 

      .       .  

 
  

Page 28Page 44



 

Objector 10 
       .        ., on behalf of 

       .        and       .        .,    . Queensway 

Details of objection 
Objector’s comments written as received 

H60/1319 Objection 

      .       ., Age 78 

      .       ., Age 71 

   . Queensway 

Rochdale. 

OL11    .. 

Quote: H60/1319 

Objections to Planned Traffic Proposals affecting Queensway. 

We strongly object to these these traffic parking proposals, set to put double yellow parking outside our home on Queensway 

leading up to the roundabout. First of all, we would like to highlight how disgusted we are about how the council have 

decided to inform us of these planned changes. We have been away on holiday and have come back on the 11th November, 

unaware of these changes being proposed. There has been no letters or leaflets posted through our letterbox which informs us 

of these proposed plans, instead you have published these proposals on a lamppost in tiny writing, in which, neither me or 

my wife could read or had even noticed. We only heard of the news because of our neighbours, (who have internet access) 

have informed us. 

These objections imply life changing circumstances, for both me and my wife. We currently park our car outside our home 

on Queensway and as both me and my wife both have mobility issues. We have both become increasingly reliant on our car 

to give us the independence and accessibility to go shopping, hospital appointments, visit family and many other daily 

activities which we couldn’t do without easy access to the car. The proposed parking planning would mean that we would not 

be able to park outside our house and therefore have to try and find somewhere else to park. However, I cannot think of 

where we could park our car which would accommodate our mobility issues as there is where else for us to park within 

walking distance for us. Due to the financial reasons and the location of the house being on a corner, we cannot consider 

getting a drive way installed. We also fear that with no parking outside our house on Queensway, would also prevent any 

friends and family from visiting us, as some of our friends and family also have mobility issues. This would be very off 

putting for them and this would cause a negative effect on our social lives, in which, we enjoy very much in our retirement. 

This has been our sanctuary and our home since 1982, and feel disgusted that these life changing proposals would make our 

home become impractical and deny us access to mobility, as without easy access to our car, we would lose our independence 

and essentially become isolated within our own home. 

As pensioners we have no access to the internet or emails and the fact that the proposals were online to view is unacceptable, 

one of our neighbours has kindly offered to email this letter for us and would like to ask that any further correspondence 

other than the receipt for this email be by post to the address above. 

 

Kind Regards 

      .       . and       .       . 

The residents of    . Queensway. 

  

Page 29Page 45



APPENDIX D – Response to Objections by Highways Officer 

All ten objections raise similar general concerns about parking close to homes, 

together with concerns about picking up and setting down passengers and being 

unable to receive kerbside deliveries. 

The majority of properties located on the southerly side of Queensway between 

Hartley Lane and Edinburgh Way already have off street parking provision. 

Some objectors describe the difficulty that no other parking is available and mention 

privately owned parking places that are not available for public use, although some 

unrestricted parking bays are marked out on Queensway, they are a minimum of 65 

metres beyond Hartley Lane and clearly not convenient to use, and most nearby 

streets have established no waiting at any time restrictions on them due to the 

presence of Sandbrook Primary School and the narrowness of Queens Drive. 

There can be no guarantee that restrictions won’t be introduced or altered on any 

highway in the future, and similarly no guarantee that land won’t be developed, 

particularly on one of the Borough’s Primary A Class Roads. 

It has been suggested that the proposals will reduce the value of property. The value 

of a property cannot include a sum for items that the seller has no control over such 

as parking on the Public Highway. 

An objector suggests implementing some pavement parking and illustrates a street 

in Bootle, Merseyside. Such an arrangement would at least require works including 

signing, bollards, and strengthening the footway. It would result in a narrowing of the 

footway thus inconveniencing pedestrians in addition to significant cost, and 

furthermore would not allow sufficient remaining space for two traffic lanes. It would 

therefore not better the existing situation.  

Concerns have been raised that residents will no longer be able to make use of taxis 

or be picked up or dropped off by friends and family due to the proposed restrictions. 

These concerns are unfounded because  

 No Waiting At Any Time restrictions do not prevent a vehicle stopping so that 

a passenger can board or alight. 

 Loading restrictions do not prevent a vehicle stopping so that a passenger can 

board or alight. 

No Loading at peak times is common on many major roads and has been in place on 

other sections of Queensway for many years. The proposed restrictions would allow 

loading to take place on the south side of Queensway outside of peak times. 

Land use changes and developments in the near vicinity have meant a loss of 

parking on land not owned or controlled by any of the objectors who have then 

placed greater reliance upon parking on Queensway. 

Page 30Page 46



An objector suggests creating residents parking on the affected section of 

Queensway. Residents parking schemes are intended to give preference on an area 

wide basis where external parking demand from for example factory workers are 

preventing residents parking close to their homes. Any such scheme would continue 

the present arrangement of vehicles parking at the kerb side impeding traffic flow 

which this proposed Order is trying to prevent. 

Some concern is expressed about the manner in which the proposed Order has 

been advertised.  

As with all TROs, the Council followed The Local Authorities Traffic Orders 

(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 in advertising this proposal, 

which involved publishing a notice of intent in the local newspaper and posting 

copies on site.  

The Council do not generally consult with persons whom it believes may be affected 

by a proposal as there may be supporters of the scheme whom would not be 

afforded the same opportunity to make representations. Supporters of a scheme 

may be regular users of the highway and not necessarily local residents or 

businesses. Further to this, it is not always clear which properties may be affected or 

not, which can lead to further claims of inconsistency in the way in which the Council 

advertises a new traffic order. 

 

  

Page 31Page 47



APPENDIX E – Queensway south side 

Alternative Plan 

 

Page 32Page 48



                APPENDIX F 

Equality Impact Assessment 

  

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below. 

Function Strategy Policy Project    

 
Other, please specify below 

   Objections to a 

proposed Traffic 

Regulation Order 

 

 

 

Service: 

Neighbourhoods, Place 

Section: 

Highways, Network Management 

Responsible Officer: 

Paul Wotton 01706 924593 

(paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk) 

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed: 

Consideration of objections to a proposed Traffic Regulation 

Order at Queensway, Edinburgh Way, and Hartley Lane, 

Rochdale. (Balderstone and Kirkholt Ward). 

Date of Assessment:     15 January 2020 

Officers Involved:     Paul Wotton (paul.wotton@rochdale.gov.uk) 

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed? 

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project) 

The purpose of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is to introduce some ‘no waiting at any time’, ‘no 

loading at any time’, and ‘no loading Monday –Friday 7.30-9.30am & 4.00-6.30pm’ restrictions on parts of 

Queensway, Edinburgh Way, and Hartley Lane. 

The scheme proposals are intended to prevent parked vehicles restricting the free passage of traffic in the 

vicinity of the Queensway/Edinburgh roundabout, make an improvement to highway safety, and as a 

consequence this would reduce some instances of footway parking. 

2.Who are the key stakeholders? 

(i)Transport for Greater Manchester who are funding this TRO as part of the Mayor of Greater Manchester’s 

congestion deal funding. 

(ii)Rochdale Council in its role as Highway Authority. 

Page 33Page 49



(iii)Rochdale South Township Delegated sub-Committee who are considering this objection report. 

 

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 

assessment.   

Strengthening restrictions in the area described in Section 1 above. 

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet? 

To improve 

 traffic flow 

 traffic circulation at a major junction 

 the pedestrian’s ease of use of footways by reducing instances of some vehicles which presently park on 

footways 

 highway safety by improving visibility, particularly forward visibility on the approach to a major junction 

To meet the aspirations of the Mayor of Greater Manchester’s congestion deal. 

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken? 

No. 

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project? 

Vehicular users of the highway 

Pedestrian users of the highway 

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 

who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology. 

Traffic Management Unit’s members as statutory consultees. 

Ward members. 

The public in respect of the statutory process to advertise the traffic order proposal, some of whom have chosen to 

make the objections that are now under consideration. 

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  

What action will be taken to close any data gaps? 

Have followed usual required process much of which is statutory to promote a Traffic Regulation Order. 

 

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 

include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available. 

None. 

 

Page 34Page 50



10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 

includes both positive and potentially negative impacts. 

Race Equality  

None. 

Disabled People 

None of the objectors state that they are disabled or are holders of disabled blue badges. 

For data privacy reasons there is no knowledge of the existence of disabled badge holders in the vicinity of 

the proposed scheme. 

Some of the objectors mention disability and mobility. 

Waiting restrictions do not allow vehicles to park on the footway. Disabled and all other pedestrians may 

benefit from the ability to use footways more easily and safely where the introduction of restrictions causes 

the removal of or a reduction in footway parking. 

Blue ‘disabled’ badge holders may park on the proposed ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions for up to 3 hours; 

a standard exemption. 

At times when loading is not allowed, blue badge holders are not allowed to park. 

There will be no restriction upon any motorist stopping on any of the proposed restrictions to allow a passenger 

to board or alight from a vehicle; a standard exemption. 

Carers 

See disabled people above. 

Gender 

None. 

Age 

The proposed restrictions could affect persons with age related personal mobility limitations. 

Waiting restrictions do not allow vehicles to park on the footway. All pedestrians may benefit from the ability 

to use footways more easily and safely where the introduction of restrictions causes the removal of or a 

reduction in footway parking. 

If introduced, the restrictions will not prevent any motorist stopping on the proposed restrictions in this scheme 

to allow a passenger to board or alight from a vehicle. 

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel 

None. 

Sexual Orientation 

None. 

Page 35Page 51



Gender Reassignment 

None. 

Religion or Belief 

None. 

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave 

None. 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 

None. 

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis? 

Equality Act 2010 Protected Characteristics of Disability and Age may be affected. 

12.What are your recommendations? 

Highways Officers believe that the scheme as originally proposed is justifiable. 

Taking into account the Protected Characteristics described, and additional information provided by the 10 

objectors to this proposed TRO, the report offers a recommendation that the Committee may wish to 

recommend that a reduced length of restrictions be implemented to allow some unrestricted parking to 

remain without alteration on a significant portion of Queensway of greatest interest to the objectors’ 

locations. 

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 

action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions. 

The offer of reduction in the scale of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order contained in section 12 above 

and fully detailed in the Committee report. 

 

Signed (Completing Officer):       Paul Wotton  Date:   23rd January 2020. 

 

Signed (Head of Service):      _______________  Date:   _____________ 

 

 

Page 36Page 52



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 58

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 64

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes , 01/12/2020 Cabinet

	6 Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway, Rochdale
	Append. 1 for Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway, Rochdale
	6 Objections to Traffic Order - Queensway, Rochdale


	8 Rochdale Academy SEN school
	9 Rochdale Town Hall - Procurement and Appointment of Main Works Contractors for Phases 1 & 2
	10 Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 Update

